






      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 7, 2020 Page 1 
 

MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL 
OCTOBER 7, 2020 

 
The Middleton City Council meeting on October 7, 2020 was called-to-order at 5:38 p.m. by Mayor 
Rule.  
 
Roll Call: Council Member Carrie Huggins attended via telephone, Council Members Jeff Garner 
and Tim O’Meara were present. Council President Rob Kiser arrived at 5:45 p.m. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation: Mike Crossley 
 
Action Item: Approve Amended Agenda. Motion and approved Unanimously by Council 
Members Garner, O’Meara and Huggins (on the phone). 
 
Discussion item 
 

1. Water turn off fees and time limits – Jim Gordon 
 
Public Works Water Operator, Jim Gordon presented to Council considering a different 
approach to water shut off. Currently there is a $30 charge for the residents who call 
afterhours if their water is off due to nonpayment.  
 
(President Rob Kiser came into the meeting at 5:45 p.m. Council Member Huggins hung 
up on the meeting. There is a quorum with Kiser, Garner and O’Meara.) 

 
Action Items 
 

1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) 
a. Consider approving minutes for Council’s September 2, 2020 regular meeting, 

September 8, 2020 special meeting. 
b.   Consider ratifying September 18, 2020 payroll in the amount of $ $102,171.93 

and accounts payable thru September 30, 2020 in the amount of $190,885.09. 
 

Council President called the item. He gave a brief explanation of the accounts payable 
registers. 
 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve consent agenda items a and b. 
Seconded by Council Member Garner. Approved unanimously. 

 
2. Consider approving West Highlands Subdivision Phase No. 9 Final Plat – Bruce 

Bayne 

 

Mayor Rule called the item. Planning and Zoning Official Bruce Bayne explained the 

West Highlands Subdivision Phase No. 9 Final Plat. This has been recommended by the 

City Engineer and Planning and Zoning to be approved. This plat has a bond attached to 

it in the amount of $743,823.00 that is associated with this project for work that still 

needs to be completed. They are allowed to get the final plat approved and it is also tied 

to a developmental agreement approval that is conditioned upon payment of $350,000 

for intersection control.  

 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 7, 2020 Page 2 
 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve West Highlands Subdivision Phase 

No. 9 Final Plat provided the applicant meets all recommended changes. Motion seconded 

by Council Member Garner. Motion approved unanimously.  

3. Consider approving Stonehaven Subdivision Phase No. 3 Final Plat – Bruce Bayne 

Mayor Rule called the item. Planning and Zoning Official Bruce Bayne explained the 

Stonehaven Subdivision Phase No. 3 Final Plat. This is a little bit different because the 

applicant had a phasing plan that didn’t agree with the plat. The City required that the 

applicant revise the layout for this phase because they were over 50 lots and as soon as 

they hit 51 lots, they are required to have second exit out of their subdivision. It was 

required to take this up to the north, up to Willis Road for the second access. The 

applicant will submit to the Planning and Zoning Commission their amended phasing 

plan for approval and then that will come before City Council as well. That amended 

phasing plan will be for phase 3 and all phases going forward. The City Engineer and 

Planning and Zoning recommend approval of this final plat.  

Motion:  Motion by Council President Kiser to Consider approving Stonehaven Subdivision 

Phase No. 3 Final Plat provided the applicant meets all City recommendation. Motion 

seconded by Council Member O’Meara. Motion approved unanimously.  

4. Consider confirmation of Mayor’s appointment of Jim Taylor to Library Board. – 

Mayor Rule  

 

Mayor Rule called the item and explained that there is a vacancy that needs to be filled. 

He has identified three qualified applicants and he is submitting Jim Taylor for 

confirmation. Jim has consented to serve this appointment. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to confirm Mayor Rules appointment of Jim 

Taylor to the Library Board. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. Motion 

approved unanimously. 

5. Public Hearing: Consider adopting Resolution 453-20: to amend the City of 

Middleton’s Comprehensive Plan text and maps as necessary to incorporate the 

city’s updated capital improvement plans for city Police Department. 

 

Mayor Rule called the public hearing open at 6:02 p.m. 

 

Police Chief Alan Takeuchi: Thanked the Council for hearing this item.  

 

No Comments from public. 

 

Mayor Rule closed the public hearing comment at 6:04 p.m. 

 

Planning and Zoning Official Bruce Bayne said that the Planning and Zoning 

Commission recommended the approval of this.  

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to Consider adopting Resolution 453-20: to 

amend the City of Middleton’s Comprehensive Plan text and maps as necessary to 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 7, 2020 Page 3 
 

incorporate the city’s updated capital improvement plans for city Police Department. Motion 

seconded by Council Member Garner. Motion approved unanimously. 

The public hearing closed at 6:15 p.m. 

6. Public Hearing: A request by Joan Endicott to rezone three parcels, totaling 0.70 

acres from R-3 (Single Family Residential) to M-U (Mixed Use)  from Middleton City 

Code 5-1-5, along with a Development Agreement, Middleton  City Code  Title 5, 

Section 2.The subject properties are located at 424 Boise St., for Parcel No. 

R18502, 0 Boise Street for Parcel No. R18503 and 0 Boise Street for Parcel No. 

R18504, Middleton, Idaho. – Bruce Bayne 

 

Planning and Zoning Official introduced the item and read the staff report. He reviewed 

the Development Agreement and covered Article 3.1, Conditions of the Development 

Agreement.  

Council President Kiser asked how many townhomes would be allowed on the property. 

Bruce said it would be 6-7 units, but they would also have to meet the parking 

requirements. Bruce said the neighbor to the west is looking to be rezoned to Mixed 

Use.  

Mayor Rule called the public hearing open at 6:16 p.m.  

 

Jacalyn Hill: 414 Boise Street. She just moved in and commented that she learned a lot 

about what is going on around her.  

 

Mayor Rule closed the public hearing at 6:18 p.m. 

 

Discussion: Council Member O’Meara said it is a great loss to lose the Endicott 

residence, but he can see how the growth in that area is in line for the Mixed Use, so he 

is in favor of the zone change. Council President Kiser agrees this is a good move to put 

commercial in where they want it. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve a request by Joan Endicott to rezone 

three parcels, totaling 0.70 acres from R-3 (Single Family Residential) to M-U (Mixed Use)  

from Middleton City Code 5-1-5, along with a Development Agreement per Middleton City 

Code Title 5, Section 2. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. Motion approved 

unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 

7. Public Hearing: An application from Peter Harris for a preliminary plat and special 

use permit of Concord Square Subdivision. The proposed preliminary plat zoned 

R-3, consists of 9 single family lots, accessing Birch Avenue. Site area is 

approximately 2.69 acres located near the southeast corner of Birch Ave. and 

Concord St, address of 0 Concord St, Canyon County parcel no. R1869601. – 

Bruce Bayne 

 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to table the public hearing for application from 

Peter Harris for a preliminary plat and special use permit of Concord Square Subdivision 

until November 4, 2020. Motion seconded by Council Member Garner. Motion approved 

unanimously. 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 7, 2020 Page 4 
 

 

8. Public Hearing: a proposed exchange of a portion of City owned property located 

at 0 State Highway 44; parcel R3473701100 with property located 322 E. 1stStreet, 

Middleton, Idaho. The City owned property located at 0 State Highway 44; parcel 

R3473701100, Canyon County is approximately 18,300 square feet and is zoned 

C1. It’s estimated value is 60,000.The property located at 322 E. 1st Street, 

Middleton ID is 11,098 square feet, zoned C3 and its estimated value is 

84,000.00.The purpose of the exchange is to secure property adjacent to existing 

city property downtown to allow for future downtown consolidated city services. – 

Becky Crofts  

Mayor Rule opened the public hearing at 6:16 p.m. 

City Administrator Becky Crofts explained the proposed property exchange. The city would 

keep the easement and there would be an agreement put together so that the owner’s 

septic would be able to encroach into the City easement as he has to have a primary and 

secondary option for his septic. The reason the City owns this property is for a future 

regional lift station. Middleton Fire has approved the access. The City is working with ITD 

and Southwest District Health for approvals.  

Mayor Rule is in full support of this trade. 

No public comment. 

Mayor Rule closed the public hearing at 6:28 p.m. 

Council President Kiser said this is a big step in moving forward to get all the City services 

back together. We might not see it, but those that come behind us will.  

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the exchange of a portion of City 

owned property located at 0 State Highway 44; parcel R3473701100 with property located 

322 E. 1st Street. Motion seconded by Council Member Garner. Motion approved 

unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 

9. Consider purchasing property commonly known as 324 E 1st Street, Middleton, 

Idaho 83644 in the amount of $95,000.00 subject to appraisal. – Becky Crofts 

Mayor Rule introduced the item. City Administrator Becky Crofts explained that this 

purchase is needed in order to consolidate City Services and this poperty is available for 

purchase and subject to appraisal. City Staff recommends this purchase. Mayor Rule said 

there are dollars allocated for FY2020 for this purchase and it is not in the FY2021 budget. 

Council Member O’Meara thanked the staff for their efforts in acquiring this property. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to purchase property commonly known as 324 E 

1st Street, Middleton, Idaho 83644 in the amount of $95,000.00 subject to the appraisal. 

Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. Motion approved unanimously. 

10. Public Hearing: Ordinance No. 638 of the City of Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho, 

amending Title 5 of the Middleton city code updating general zoning provisions, , 

modifying and updating the uses and notes in the land use, setback and area 

tables, updating preliminary and final plat requirements; updating design and 

development standards; updating required road and utility improvements; 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 7, 2020 Page 5 
 

updating special developments provisions; making other minor modifications and 

providing an effective date. - Bruce Bayne 

Mayor Rule opened the public hearing at 6:33 p.m. 

Planning and Zoning Official Bruce Bayne gave an explanation of the suggested revisions 

for Title 5. 

Clarification: E-1: Any user can stay for 30 days and then they have to move out for at least 

90 days. And they can come back for 30 days. Then have to move out for 90 days. E-2 is 

user can only stay a maximum of up to 90 days total in a 12-month period. 

Public comment: 

Jill Blue: 23245 Hartley Lane: Opposed. She opposes changes to be made as they are in 

the midst of constructing an RV Park and negotiations are being made. She wants to know 

when this would go into effect and how would it effect their project that is already in place? 

She finds it interesting that nothing has been changed on RV parks pertaining to code until 

now when their project is taking place. 

Jan Arrasmith: 12981 Okie Ridge: Opposed. She would hope this would not affect this 

project. She doesn’t agree with the part that limits the amount of time that someone can 

stay. In a code for RV Parks 184-3-7-5 Specification standards, recreation vehicles shall be 

either onsite, fewer than 180 consecutive days as long as they are fully licensed and not a 

permanent residence and they are registered as a vehicle. She is opposed because she 

feels that the City is really telling people how to run their business.  

Jim Taylor: 1052 Triumph Dr: He agrees completely with the changes except section E. The 

people who buy an RV will be permanent residents. He has an interest in an RV Park and 

he says they don’t move. They don’t have anywhere to go. He was opposed to the RV park 

in the first place. But now that the RV park has been approved, they should be able to run 

their business. He believes Council should readdress section E. 

Allen Tremble: 952 S Alturas Lake Place: Neutral. He didn’t understand what the reason for 

E was. If he was a business owner, he would be a little perturbed about having to kick 

people out and then let them back in. Do people camp out and never leave? Are we trying to 

get rollover in there? Why would we request them leave after 30 days? 

Mayor Rule closed the public hearing at 6:47 p.m. 

Planning and Zoning Official Bruce Bayne said that code changes are done all the time. It is 

not unusual to change the code. The reason for the change to leave before 30 days. We do 

not want this to become a subdivision, which it would if people were allowed to stay year-

round. It is an RV park, and an RV park to the City is thought of as where there is flow in 

and out. Where Events in the City bring different people in for those events. He doesn’t think 

that the City should have RV parks as effacto housing because that is not what the intent is. 

That is part of the reason for limiting the stay. 

City Attorney Chris Yorgason explained that the Ordinance goes into effect immediately 

upon its passage, approval and publication. When applications are submitted the applicant 

is entitled to the ordinances that are in effect at that time. Any code changes that go into 

effect after the application is filed would not be applicable. 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 7, 2020 Page 6 
 

Mayor Rule said this is the first RV park that Middleton has had in its city limits so there is a 

bit of a learning curve. The Okamura’s met with the Mayor and brought up a city code that 

applied to Mobile home parks that allowed for 45 days.  

Council President Kiser said he is hung up on the 30 days limit. The other part of that code 

is the question of who is going to enforce this code? He doesn’t think it should be a 

permanent stay, but he does think it needs to be longer than 30 days. Council Member 

O’Meara agrees with Council President Kiser in that enforcement would be a nightmare. He 

does not agree with mandating to a business how they will run their business. Council 

Member Garner agrees with removing item E. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve Ordinance No. 638 with the exclusion 

of section E. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. Approved unanimously by Roll 

Call Vote. 

11. Consider adopting Ordinance No. 638: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 

MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING THE MIDDLETON CITY 

CODE TITLE 5, CHAPTER 4, SECTION 3 UPDATING TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 

REQUIREMENTS; AMENDING TITLE 5, CHAPTER 4, SECTION 13, SUBSECTION 3 

UPDATING RV PARK APPLICATION STANDARDS, AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. – Bruce Bayne 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to read Ordinance No. 638 by title only. Motion 

seconded by Council Member Garner. Approved unanimously. 

Council President Kiser read Ordinance No. 638 by title only. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to waive the three-reading rule and approve 

Ordinance No. 638 with the exclusion of section E. Motion seconded by Council Member 

Garner. Approved unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 

12. Consider approving a contract for Professional Services Agreement between City 

of Middleton, Idaho and SAFEbuilt, LLC for Building Inspector Services. – Becky 

Crofts 

Mayor Rule called the item. City Administrator Becky Crofts explained the contract inspector 

services. Right now, we have one building official/inspector and he has been sick the last 3 

days. The City does not have a backup inspector. We are asking council to approve the 

contract. It has been reviewed by the City Attorney. We did not budget for an additional 

building inspector this year based on the numbers, Chris can generally handle it based on 

the volume, but we do need a good backup.  

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve contract for Professional Services 

Agreement between City of Middleton, Idaho and SAFEbuilt, LLC for Building Inspector 

Services. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. Motion approved unanimously. 

13. Consider adopting Ordinance No. 640: Coburn Annexation: AN ORDINANCE OF 

THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, ANNEXING TO THE CITY 

OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE 

UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND CONTIGUOUS TO 

THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; ESTABLISHING 

THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL PROPERTY TO M-U (MIXED-USE), 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 7, 2020 Page 7 
 

WITH A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT; DIRECTING THAT COPIES OF THIS 

ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

Mayor Rule called the item. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to read Ordinance No. 640 by title only. Motion 

seconded by Council Member Garner. Motion approved unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 

Council President Kiser read Ordinance No. 640 by title only. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to waive the three-reading rule of Ordinance No. 

640 and approve it. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. Motion approved 

unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 

Public Comments, Mayor Comments, Council Comments:  

Council comment: Thanks to ITD - Caleb Lakey and his crew/staff for restriping Hwy 44 at the 

light. 

Mayor comment: Work on S. Cemetery is moving forward at this time. The gravel extraction was 

approved, and the test pits have been certified according to the state. The city will have to 

excavate about 12 inches of topsoil. We are trying to keep everything in sync and not forget 

anything. Personnel issues; we are understaffed at the City of Middleton. Planning is still way 

behind even after we have hired a new planner. It is the plan to pay for a new engineer with the 

savings.  

City Administrator Becky Crofts said one of the goals of the Mayor is to get a surplus in the 

general fund. We budgeted in the general fund 2.9 million dollars and received about 3.088 

million dollars. We were above that by about $111,000.00. We received more money than we 

budgeted. What is impressive is that we had anticipated spending about 2.9 million and the city 

only spent 2.5 million dollars and we saved about $443,000.00 and add the $100,000.00 from 

additional revenues from mainly building. We ended the year with a budget surplus of about 

$555,000.00.  There are a few items that still need to come through. Those funds that are not 

earmarked for projects will go into the bank. The goal is to have in the general fund one years’ 

worth of spending so that we always have a safety net.  It was a good year for the city. All the 

funds closed out in the positive. We have a lot of planning and dollars that will be used next year 

for transportation. Hopefully S. Cemetery phase one will be completed as well as the water 

crossing. Hartley the 30-inch sewer trunk line and the most important thing is we are finally 

going to be able to improve some of the water, sewer and roadways in what is refer to as Old 

Middleton, the most established part of Middleton. We are on the right path forward.  

Adjourn:   Mayor Rule adjourned the meeting at 7:16 p.m.  

        
             
ATTEST:      Steven J Rule, Mayor  
 
      
Jennica Reynolds, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved:  November 4, 2020 
 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 7, 2020 Page 8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 21, 2020 Page 1 
 

MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL 
OCTOBER 21, 2020 

 
The Middleton City Council meeting on October 21, 2020 was called-to-order at 5:32 p.m. by 
Mayor Rule.  
 
Roll Call: Council President Kiser and Council Member Huggins, Garner and O’Meara were all 
present. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation: Jennifer Barr 
 
Action Items 
 

1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) 
a. Consider approving minutes for Council’s September 16, 2020 regular meeting. 
      Consider ratifying October 9, 2020 payroll in the amount of $ 72,962.84 and 

accounts payable thru October 16, 2020 in the amount of $179,548.41 
b.   Consider approving FCO – Endicott Rezone and Development Agreement 

 
Council President Kiser noted there is a typo on page 3 of the minutes that needs to be 
cleaned up. 
 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve consent agenda items a and b. 
Seconded by Council Member O’Meara. Approved unanimously. 

 
4. Consider approving the SRO contract between Middleton Police and Middleton 

School District. – Chief Takeuchi 

Mayor Rule called the item. Chief Alan Takeuchi explained the SRO Contract with the 

Middleton School District. City Attorney Chris Yorgason has looked at the language and 

doesn’t see any problems with the contract. Council President Kiser asked if the same 

staff would be used would continue to be the same staff used. Chief said yes they are 

the same. He is very happy and thrilled to see the Middleton Police in the Middleton 

Schools period. The SRO’s interact with the community in other capacities besides just 

the SRO so it is a great benefit for the community. The Middleton School District wants 

to be able to look at the contract throughout the year as Covid and the District response 

to Covid unfold.  

 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve approving the Consider approving the 

SRO contract between Middleton Police and Middleton School District. Motion seconded by 

Council Member Garner. Motion approved unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 

Mayor Rule said he really appreciates the School District being very responsible and 

through explanation with City Staff and Chief Takeu have been able to reach that 

agreement.  

2. Zoom Presentation for Waste Water Natural Treatment – update and status – Jack 

Harrison. 

 Mayor Rule called the item. The City spends a lot of money for the waste water natural 

treatment in order to save a lot of money in the future. Mayor Rule introduced Jack 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 21, 2020 Page 2 
 

Harrison with HyQual who gave a presentation detailing the updates and status of the 

wastewater natural treatment re-use system. The idea is to use a combination of the 

natural treatment and mechanical treatment in order to meet the requirements for the 

permit discharge into the Boise River. Natural treatment helps to keep the cost of 

treatment lower instead of solely using mechanical treatment options where cost can 

increase with stricter regulations for the discharge permit.  

 Construction of the Rubicon gate has been completed and is fully operational. We are 

still working on the details of the sediment removal. That is the single largest cost item 

for the Mill Slough project.  

 Mayor Rule asked City Administrator Becky Crofts to explain some associated costs. 

Diversion costs are estimated to come through $50-$80,000. In the Wastewater Master 

Planning it was estimated that this natural treatment would cost about 1.2-1.5 Million 

dollars. Council will continue to see some additional costs come through to get the 

system set up. And then we will move into the monitoring period. So, we are getting to 

the point where we are collecting data. That is important because if we can’t prove the 

study, we cannot prove the savings. We are anticipating about 10 million dollars in 

savings, for our spending of 1 million.  

3.  Consider approving Proposed HyQual Scope of Work for FY2021 Water Quality 

Permitting and Natural Treatment Planning in an amount not to exceed $62,000. – 

Becky Crofts    

Mayor Rule introduced item. City Administrator Becky Crofts explained the agreement 

shows the tasks, milestones and hourly spending limits. Council Member Huggins said it 

is important to note that if the spending wasn’t used here for the Natural Treatment, it 

would be used for a different mechanical treatment. Mayor Rule said the different types 

of treatment (temperature alone) could cost millions. This is a good way to go. Becky 

said in some of Jack’s hours are the negotiations for the permit with DEQ.  

Motion:  Motion by Council President Kiser to approve Proposed HyQual Scope of Work for 

FY2021 Water Quality Permitting and Natural Treatment Planning in an amount not to 

exceed $62,000. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. Motion approved 

unanimously by Roll Call Vote.  

5. Consider adopting Ordinance 642 of the City of Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho, 

amending Title 1 and Title 4. - Bruce Bayne 

Mayor Rule called the item and Planning and Zoning Official Bruce Bayne explained the 

Ordinance No. 642 amending Title 1 and Title 4. He explained the need to have this in 

the code to change the definition of types of housing as well as definitions of main, 

public and private lanes which will be built to city standards. Planning and Zoning 

Commission was in agreement with all of the changes. 

 

Council President Kiser said he would like clarification of what a private lane is and what 

is maintained by the City. Bruce said it would be determined on a case by case basis.  

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to waive the 3-reading rule of Ordinance 642 of 

the City of Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho, amending Title 1 and Title 4. Motion seconded 

by Council Member Huggins. Motion approved unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 21, 2020 Page 3 
 

 Council President Kiser read the Ordinance No. 642 by title only. 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve Ordinance No. 642. Motion seconded 

by Council Member Huggins. Motion approved unanimously by Roll Call Vote. 

Public Comments, Mayor Comments, Council Comments:  

No public comments 

Council Member O’Meara: He went to the last school board meeting with the School District with 

a proposal for the Greater Middleton Parks and Recreation District to enter into another lease 

agreement for the Community Center. The school board agreed to enter into a month by month 

extension of the lease. Parks and Rec will continue to try to work with the school district to 

negotiate a more long term solution. 

Mayor Rule said Parks and Rec has asked the City to provide a letter of support. The Mayor is 

inclined to support that effort, and unless there is any objection, he and staff will draft a letter 

and mail it to the school district. There were no objections. 

Mayor Comment: The City has interviewed for the City Engineer position and made an offer. 

Middleton has a lot to offer. It is a good community. 

Adjourn:   Mayor Rule adjourned the meeting at 6:54 p.m.  

        
             
ATTEST:      Steven J Rule, Mayor  
 
      
Jennica Reynolds, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved:  November 4, 2020 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

October 26, 2020 
 

To: City of Middleton 
6 North Dewey Ave 
Middleton, Idaho 83644 
 
The following represents our understanding of the services we will provide City of Middleton. 

You have requested that we audit the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of City of Middleton as of September 30, 2020, and for the year then ended and the related notes, 
which collectively comprise City of Middleton’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We are 
pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter. Our 
audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on each opinion unit applicable to those 
basic financial statements. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAP,) as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
require that included supplementary information, such as management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary 
comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary 
Information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. 
GAAS). These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their methods of 
measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the RSI. The following RSI is 
required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited: 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 Budgetary Comparison 

 
Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany City of Middleton’s basic financial statements. We will 
subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic 
financial statements and perform certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with U.S. 
GAAS. We intend to provide an opinion on the following supplementary information in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole: 

 Combining Statements. 

 



 2 
 

Auditor Responsibilities 
 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (U.S. GAAS) and Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental regulations, grant agreements, or 
contractual agreements. 

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the basic 
financial statements. If appropriate, our procedures will therefore include tests of documentary evidence that 
support the transactions recorded in the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct 
confirmation of cash, investments, and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with creditors and 
financial institutions. As part of our audit process, we will request written representations from your attorneys, and 
they may bill you for responding. At the conclusion of our audit, we will also request certain written 
representations from you about the basic financial statements and related matters. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements (whether caused by errors, fraudulent financial reporting, 
misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws or governmental regulations) may not be detected exists, even 
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. GAAS and in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. 

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in 
internal control relevant to the audit of the basic financial statements that we have identified during the audit. Our 
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other periods. 

We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is 
necessary for us to modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions on 
the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for 
any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may 
decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement.  

Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

As previously discussed, as part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we will perform tests of City of Middleton’s compliance with the provisions of 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide 
an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion. 
 
Management Responsibilities 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and those charged with governance acknowledge and 
understand that they have responsibility: 

a. For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 



3  

b. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to error, 
fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental regulations, 
grant agreements, or contractual agreements; and 

c. To provide us with: 
i. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of the basic financial statements such as records, documentation, and other matters; 
ii. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and 
iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain 

audit evidence. 
d. For including the auditor’s report in any document containing basic financial statements that indicates that 

such basic financial statements have been audited by the entity’s auditor; 
e. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its 

activities; 
f. For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the 

management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a whole; and 

g. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding assets. 
 

With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility: (a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria; 
(b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information; (c) to include 
our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary information and 
that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information; and (d) to present the supplementary 
information with the audited basic financial statements, or if the supplementary information will not be presented 
with the audited basic financial statements, to make the audited basic financial statements readily available to the 
intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary 
information and our report thereon. 
 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management written confirmation concerning representations 
made to us in connection with the audit. 
 
Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of City of Middleton’s basic financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to the governing body of City of Middleton. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified 
opinions will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions, add 
an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement. 
 
We also will issue a written report on in accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we 
will also issue a written report describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and 
over compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that 
testing. However, providing an opinion on internal control and compliance will not be an objective of the audit and, 
therefore, no such opinion will be expressed. 
 
Nonattest Services: 
 
With respect to any nonattest services we perform, City of Middleton’s management is responsible for (a) making 
all management decisions and performing all management functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to 
oversee the services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting 
responsibility for the results of the services performed; and (e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, 
including monitoring ongoing activities.  The services we will provide are: 
 

 Help in preparation of the financial statements. 
 



4 
 
Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and 
experience of management, should we participate in any form of preparation of the basic financial statements and 
related schedules or disclosures as these actions are deemed a non-audit service. 
 
 
Other 

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents or 
support for any other transactions we select for testing. 
 
If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the basic financial statements and make reference to our firm, you 
agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing. You also agree to 
provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is distributed.  
 
During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail, and you 
should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted 
communications. 
 
Fees and Timing 
 
Jordan Zwygart, CPA is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. Their responsibilities 
include supervising Zwygart John & Associates CPAs, PLLC’s services performed as part of this engagement and 
signing or authorizing another qualified firm representative to sign the audit report. 

We will notify you immediately of any circumstances we encounter that could significantly affect this fee. 
Whenever possible, we will attempt to use City of Middleton’s personnel to assist in the preparation of schedules 
and analyses of accounts. This effort could substantially reduce our time requirements and facilitate the timely 
conclusion of the audit.  
 
Further, we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting matters 
of a routine nature. 
 
During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, your 
operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either orally or in 
writing. 
 
You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you may become aware 
during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued. 
 
We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least five years from the date of our 
report. 
 
At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to management the following significant findings 
from the audit: 
 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices. 
 Significant difficulties, encountered during the audit, if any. 
 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any. 
 Disagreements with management, if any. 
 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant 

and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial reporting 
process. 

 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our 
audit procedures. 

 Representations we requested from management. 
 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any. 



5  

 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence, 
with management. 

 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Zwygart John & Associates CPAs, PPLC’s and 
constitutes confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation 
available to regulatory agencies pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers. If 
requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Zwygart & John & 
Associates CPAs, PLLC’s personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit 
documentation to regulatory agency. The regulatory agency may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of 
information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
  
Our fees are based on the amount of time required at various levels of responsibility, plus actual out-of-pocket 
expenses. We estimate that our fee for the audit will be $13,000.  
 
Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, 
the arrangements for our audit of the basic financial statements including our respective responsibilities. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with you and 
your staff. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

Zwygart John & Associates CPAs, PLLC 
 
 
*************************************************************** 
 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of City of Middleton. 
 
 
City of Middleton:  
 
 
 
Name: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Title: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



















































 
 

 

 

 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 

PAGE 1 of 2 
 

 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 

P O BOX 487, 1103 W. MAIN ST., MIDDLETON, ID  83644 
208-585-3133, FAX: 208-585-9601 

WWW.MIDDLETON.ID.GOV 

 

Planning Department 

Special Use Permit Checklist 
Rev: 2/11/2019 

Property Owner(s):              

 

Please answer the following questions: 

 

1.  Property Size:             

2.  Crossroads:              

3.  Future Land Use Designation:            

4.  Surrounding Land Uses:            

5.  If approved, what is the expected effect on roadways and traffic?      

               

6.  Will the proposed use generate a nuisance of light, glare, noise, vibration, smoke, fumes, odor, dust, etc.? 

               

If applicable: 

Days and hours of operation:            

Number of employees (full-time):      (part-time):     

Number of employees (living on-site):         (living off-site):      

Frequency of deliveries:       Location of deliveries:     

 

Commission Evaluation:  A public hearing will be scheduled before the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, which will review the application, receive verbal and written comments, and make a final 

decision based on the standards identified in Middleton City Code 1-15-7 and other applicable code 

sections. 

 

How will the proposed use be harmonious with the goals, objectives, and strategies in the 

Comprehensive Plan? 

 

Will the proposed use be served adequately by essential public facilities and services (pathways, streets, 

police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewer and schools or will the 

proposed use create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services? 

 

Will the proposed use be injurious to others by involving activities, processes, materials, equipment or 

conditions of operation that will be hazardous, or a nuisance to a person, or to existing or future 

sleonard
Typewriter
Peter Harris Construction Inc. 

sleonard
Typewriter
2.69 acres

sleonard
Typewriter
Southeast corner of West Concord Street and Birch Avenue

sleonard
Typewriter
Residential to north, south, east and west

sleonard
Typewriter
Residential - Special Area

sleonard
Typewriter
There will likely be a slight increase in 

sleonard
Typewriter
the number of vehicular trips since 8-9 additional homes are proposed

sleonard
Typewriter
No, this use is compatible with surrounding residential uses  

sleonard
Typewriter
n/a

sleonard
Typewriter
n/a

sleonard
Typewriter
n/a

sleonard
Typewriter
n/a

sleonard
Typewriter
n/a

sleonard
Typewriter
n/a

sleonard
Typewriter
n/a



 
 

 

 

 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 

PAGE 2 of 2 
 

 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 

P O BOX 487, 1103 W. MAIN ST., MIDDLETON, ID  83644 
208-585-3133, FAX: 208-585-9601 

WWW.MIDDLETON.ID.GOV 

 

Planning Department 

Special Use Permit Checklist 
Rev: 2/11/2019 

neighboring uses?  Nuisance means excessive traffic, vibration, noise, dust, fumes, glare, or odors or other 

similar nuisances. 

 

 

Conditions of Approval:  When approving a special use permit, conditions may be attached to: 

 

•  Minimize impact on other development; 

•  Control sequence and timing; 

•  Establish duration of the use; 

•  Assure the development is maintained properly; 

•  Designate the location and nature of development, including signs; 

•  Require the provision for on-site or off-site public facilities or services; 

•  Require more restrictive standards than those generally required in ordinance;   

•  Specify the period of time for which a permit is issued and conditions which, if not 

followed, will bring about revocation of the conditional use permit; and  

•  Require mitigation of effects of the proposed use upon service delivery by any political  

  subdivision of the State of Idaho providing services within the planning area  

  (Middleton’s area of city impact). 

 

 















 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, SURVEYORS AND PLANNERS 

332 N BROADMORE WAY 
NAMPA, IDAHO 83687 

208-442-6300 • FAX 208-466-0944 

 

  

  Page 1 of 4 

EXHIBIT “B” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Design and Construction 

2020 Middleton Wastewater Upgrade – Preliminary Design 

November 02, 2020 

 

Project Understanding 

 

The City of Middleton Idaho is proposing an upgrade to their wastewater treatment facility that will 

include the following primary items with specific descriptions below.   

• Sludge Dewatering 

• Blower system capacity upgrade 

• Influent Screen Feasibility (study) 

• WWTP Office Upgrade/Modification 

• Influent Wet well Repair & Hartley Trunk Line Coordination 

 

This scope is expected to include: 

• Project Coordination 

• Survey 

• Feasibility & Study 

• Preliminary Engineering Report 

• Limited Design (as identified below) 

 

This scope of work assumes the following general assumptions based on discussions with the City 

of Middleton staff and other available information. 

 

General Assumptions: 

a. Middleton has recently completed a wastewater treatment master plan that will serve as the 

basis for capacity and flow assumptions used in design.   

b. Project will be contained within City property.  Additional easements and/or property 

acquisition are not included within this scope.     

c. Location of existing utilities and underground pipelines will be determined based upon 

mapping provided by utility companies and the City, potholing when needed, and physical 

features observed during site visits. 

d. Middleton staff will provide design guidance. 

e. Middleton staff will provide record drawings of the existing facilities and other information 

from current projects including the Hartley Trunk Line project.   



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Services 

2020 Middleton Wastewater Upgrade  

Page 2 of 4 
 

f. Construction survey work to be provided by the Contractor. 

Scope of Work Services: 

 

1. PROJECT COORDINATION 

1.1. Kick Off Meeting – CONSULTANT will prepare an agenda and conduct a meeting with 

Middleton staff to discuss project approach, schedule, available information, site tour, etc. 

1.2. Progress Meetings – CONSULTANT will schedule progress meetings at regular intervals. 

Meeting discussion topics may include summary update, project progress, agency 

coordination status, and budget update.  It is anticipated that 12 (twelve) progress meetings 

and 6 (six) updates to the City council will take place over the 6-month duration of the 

project.  This item will be billed on a Time and Material basis at the direction of the City.  

1.3. Budget and Tracking – CONSULTANT to provide monthly progress report(s), detailing 

expenditures per task to date, percent of budget spent and percent complete.  Monthly 

progress report(s) will be submitted with monthly invoice(s).  It is anticipated that this 

project will run 24 (twenty-four) months. 

2. PRELIMINARY DESIGN 

2.1. Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) – CONSULTANT will prepare a PER in accordance 

with DEQ standards for the project (blower system upgrades and solids dewatering).  The 

existing approved wastewater treatment master plan will be used as a basis for the 

assumptions within the report.  Schedule anticipates approval from DEQ within 4 weeks of 

submission.   

2.2. Influent Screen Feasibility – CONSULTANT will review the existing influent screens for 

flow capacity and specific operational limits identified by the plant operator.  This 

information will be compared with anticipated City growth and future needs to develop a 

plan that identifies the current capacity limit (ERU’s), plans for expansion, and options for 

expansion.  This study will be used as an update to the existing wastewater master plan and 

will serve as a foundation for a future PER and design of the screen system upgrade.     

2.3. Agency Permitting and Coordination – CONSULTANT will coordinate with permitting 

agencies to determine anticipated permit requirements and anticipated scheduling for 

permitting.  This task will initiate contact with the agencies and is anticipated to include 

meetings with the following agencies: DEQ, City of Middleton 

Anticipated Permits include: 

• DEQ approval of the design plans 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Services 

2020 Middleton Wastewater Upgrade  

Page 3 of 4 
 

• Flood Plain Development permit (City of Middleton) 

• Building Permit (City of Middleton) 

 

2.4. Utility Research and Meetings – CONSULTANT will prepare agenda and conduct 

meetings with appropriate utility divisions to gather record drawings, field knowledge and 

historical data available.  It is understood that most of the utilities on the site are owned by 

the City of Middleton and Idaho Power.  CONSULTANT will coordinate with Digline and 

Public Utility Companies to receive maps of utilities in the area to show on plans. 

CONSULTANT will hire sub-consultant for potholing as needed to locate utilities in 

specific conflict areas. Budget assumes $5,000 for subconsultant fees. 

2.5. Topographic Survey & Base Map – CONSULTANT to perform topographic and existing 

features survey and develop base mapping as follows: 

Survey project control will be established/set at approximately 4 locations on the site. 

Survey will include ground shots to determine surface elevations, existing features, 

hydraulic/invert elevations of pipes, ponds, and tanks that will be necessary for design, 

limits of existing buildings and ponds.     

Prepare an existing features Base Map using the data obtained.  Provide different data 

layers for topography, planimetric features, existing visible utilities, and if requested and as 

marked by a utility locating service or as shown on maps provided by the utility companies. 

2.6. Geotechnical Exploration – CONSULTANT will hire a sub consultant to perform a 

geotechnical exploration of the site specific to the construction of a new building located 

east of the existing SBR basins.  Middleton will also provide any existing geotechnical 

information that has been previously completed for the site, including for the construction 

of the Hartley trunk main.   

3. DESIGN SERVICES 

3.1 Influent Wet Well Repair:  CONSULTANT will coordinate with the design engineer and 

contractor of the Hartley trunk main project to repair and line the influent lift station wet well 

concurrently with the trunk main project.  The goal would be to complete this work while the 

system is being bypassed for the installation of the trunk main.  This plan will include 

coordination with suppliers and the City on coating material, specification and construction 

methods required of the contractor, and a bid packet to secure a coating contractor.  This project 

is anticipated to be fast-tracked and completed within the first 2 months.   

3.2 Process System Model:  CONSULTANT will create a process model of the plant to evaluate 

its current capacity. One additional process scenario will be constructed to simulate future 

domestic and industrial growth. Process models will help identify future wastewater capital 

improvement projects necessary to meet discharge limitations. This will provide the City with a 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Services 

2020 Middleton Wastewater Upgrade  

Page 4 of 4 
 

roadmap for future growth. T-O will provide the City with a memorandum discussing our 

findings and limitations of the wastewater system. 

3.3 SBR Overflow Reconfiguration – CONSULTANT will design the piping configuration 

necessary to allow both SBR basins to overflow/drain into the headworks rather than the 

adjacent pond. Item anticipates piping and valves only, pumping will not be required.   

 

Project Schedule 

Item

Expected 

Completion 

Date

Signed Contract: Nov 18, 2020

Influent Wet Well 8 Weeks Jan 13, 2021

Survey 4 Weeks Dec 16, 2020

PER 12 Weeks Feb 10, 2021

DEQ PER Review* 2 Weeks Feb 24, 2021

Expected 

Duration

 

 * Assumed timeline based upon DEQ review & approval 

 

Cost of Services:   

Services will be billed on a Lump Sum basis in accordance with the following schedule. 

 

1.0 Project Coordination   $   .00 

2.0 Preliminary Design   $   .00 

3.0 Final Design    $   .00  

4.0 Bid Administration & Support  $   .00 

5.0 Construction Assistance   $   .00 

$   .00 



CLIENT:  

LOCATION:  Middleton, Idaho

PROJECT NAME:  2020 Middleton Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade

PROJECT NUMBER:  

DATE:  November 02, 2020

ENGINEERING SERVICES FEE CONTINGENCY

TOTAL FEE WITH 

CONTINGENCY

TASK 1 - Project Coordination & Meetings $25,099.00 $0.00 $25,099.00

TASK 2 - Preliminary Design $132,629.00 $0.00 $132,629.00

TASK 3 - Design Services $45,040.00 $0.00 $45,040.00

$202,768.00 $0.00 $202,768.00TOTAL ENGINEERING FEES



Project Manager Technical lead Project Engineer Design Engineer 1 Design Engineer 2 Design Engineer 3 Draftsman Structural Engineer

Enviormental 

Engineer Surveyor Clerical Total Misc. Cost

TASK 1 - Project Coordination & Meetings $175.00 $220.00 $130.00 $105.00 $95.00 $90.00 $85.00 $110.00 $95.00 $110.00 $50.00 Hours Costs Summary

1.1 Kick-off Meeting 9 9 9 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 31 $5,105.00

1.2 Progress Meetings 40 20 20 0 0 0 0 20 10 0 0 110 $17,150.00

1.3 Budget and Tracking 12 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 $2,620.00

Estimated Total Man-hours 61 29 33 0 0 0 0 20 14 0 0

Summary Costs 10,675.00$             6,380.00$              4,290.00$              -$                     -$                    -$                      -$                    2,200.00$             1,330.00$           -$                    -$                   

Reimbursable-Mailing 0 $0.00 $0.00

Miscellaneous 0 $0.00 $0.00

Lodging and Per Diem 0 Days $0.00 $0.00

Auto Rental 0 Days $0.00 $0.00

Mileage 400 Mi $0.56 $224.00

$25,099.00

Checks

Project Manager Technical lead Project Engineer Design Engineer 1 Design Engineer 2 Design Engineer 3 Draftsman Structural Engineer

Enviormental 

Engineer Surveyor Clerical Total Misc. Cost

TASK 2 - Preliminary Design $175.00 $220.00 $130.00 $105.00 $95.00 $90.00 $85.00 $110.00 $95.00 $110.00 $50.00 Hours Costs Summary

2.1 Prelminary Engineering Report 25 40 100 100 100 100 100 20 10 0 40 635 $68,825.00

2.2 Influent Screen Feasibility 10 15 20 0 0 0 20 20 0 0 10 95 $12,050.00

2.3 Agency Permitting and Coordination 10 20 20 0 0 0 0 20 20 0 40 130 $14,850.00

2.4 Utility Research and Meetings 10 10 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 $6,550.00

2.5 Topographic Survey and Base Map 10 4 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 134 $16,230.00

2.6 Geotechnical Exploration 4 4 0 0 0 0 8 8 8 0 0 32 $10,000.00 $13,900.00

Estimated Total Man-hours 69 93 180 100 100 100 128 68 38 100 90

Summary Costs 12,075.00$             20,460.00$            23,400.00$            10,500.00$           9,500.00$            9,000.00$             10,880.00$          7,480.00$             3,610.00$           11,000.00$         4,500.00$          

Reimbursable-Mailing 0 $0.00 $0.00

Miscellaneous 0 $0.00 $0.00

Lodging and Per Diem 0 Days $0.00 $0.00

Auto Rental 0 Days $0.00 $0.00

Mileage 400 Mi $0.56 $224.00

$132,629.00

Checks

Project Manager Technical lead Project Engineer Design Engineer 1 Design Engineer 2 Design Engineer 3 Draftsman Structural Engineer

Enviormental 

Engineer Surveyor Clerical Total Misc. Cost

TASK 3 - Design Services $175.00 $220.00 $130.00 $105.00 $95.00 $90.00 $85.00 $110.00 $95.00 $110.00 $50.00 Hours Costs Summary

3.1 Influent Wet Well Repair 4 1 0 0 16 0 8 1 0 0 0 30 $3,230.00

3.2 Process Engineering 4 20 60 20 0 0 0 0 104 $14,600.00

3.3 SPR Overflow Reconfiguration 5 10 100 0 0 0 100 10 5 0 10 240 $26,650.00

Estimated Total Man-hours 13 31 160 0 16 0 128 11 5 0 10

Summary Costs 2,275.00$               6,820.00$              20,800.00$            -$                     1,520.00$            -$                      10,880.00$          1,210.00$             475.00$              -$                    500.00$             

Reimbursable-Mailing 0 $0.00 $0.00

Miscellaneous 0 $0.00 $0.00

Lodging and Per Diem 0 Days $0.00 $0.00

Auto Rental 0 Days $0.00 $0.00

Mileage 1000 Mi $0.56 $560.00

$45,040.00

$24,875.00

44,480.00$                374 -$                     

$10,000.00 $132,405.00

157 $0.00

1066









AD# 39174

PO Box 9399
1618 N Midland Blvd, 83651, 

Nampa,ID  83652
Ph.  (208) 465-8129 Fax:  (907) 452-5054

ADVERTISING PROOF

Discount: $0.00
Surcharge: $0.00
Credits: $0.00

We Appreciate Your Business!

Gross:$41.26
 Paid Amount:$0.00

 Amount Due:$41.26

Payments:
Date       Method                                       Card Type           Last 4 Digits                            Check    Amount

JENNICA REYNOLDS
1 MIDDLETON, CITY OF 
P.O. BOX 487 
MIDDLETON, ID  83644

BILLING DATE:     ACCOUNT NO:

10/07/20 23106

AD # DESCRIPTION START STOP TIMES AMOUNT
10/09/20 10/09/20 1 $41.26PH 11/4/2020 - ORD 639174

LEGAL NOTICE

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO

The Middleton City Council 
is scheduled to hold a pub-
lic hearing at 5:30 p.m. on 
Wednesday, November 4, 
2020, at 310 Cornell Ave, Mid-
dleton, Idaho, to consider the 
following:

Adopt Ordinance No. 643 
of the City of Middleton, Can-
yon County, Idaho adopting 
Middleton Police Department 
Impact Fee; providing for the 
imposition, computation and 
payment of said fee; provid-
ing for the establishment of an 
Impact Fee fund; providing for 
exemptions, refunds, credits 
and waivers of the Impact Fee; 
Adopting general provisions; 
providing for appeals; and pro-
viding an effective date.

Proposed Impact Fee:
New Residential 
(per EDU)     $304.00

New Commercial 
(per square foot)          $0.15

New Industrial 
(per square foot)          $0.15

Everyone is invited to attend 
and comment at the hear-
ing. Written comments may 
be submitted at the hearing 
or earlier to the Middleton 
City Clerk, Becky Crofts at 
bcrofts@middletoncity.com or 
mailed to City of Middleton, 
P.O. Box 487, Middleton, ID 
83644.

October 9, 2020     39174



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 1 of 20 

ORDINANCE NO. 643 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, ADOPTING A 
NEW MIDDLETON IMPACT FEE ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR THE IMPOSITION, 
COMPUTATION AND PAYMENT OF A CITY POLICE IMPACT FEE; PROVIDING FOR THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF AN IMPACT FEE FUND; PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS, REFUNDS, 
CREDITS AND WAIVERS RESPECTING THE IMPACT FEES; PROVIDING GENERAL 
PROVISIONS, APPLICABILITY AND APPEALS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Idaho Code §67-8201, et seq., the City of Middleton may impose 
impact fees to fund expenditures by the City on police capital improvements needed to 
serve new development; 
 
WHEREAS, the City retained Galena Consulting (“Galena”) to analyze and assess new 
development projections in order to determine the demand for city police capital 
improvements to accommodate new development in the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Middleton Police Department Impact Fee Study and Capital 

Improvements Plan, prepared by Galena (the "impact fee study"), incorporated herein by 

reference, sets forth a reasonable methodology and analysis for determining and quantifying the 

impacts of various types of new residential and nonresidential development on the city police 

facilities; quantifies the reasonable impact of new development on the system improvements 

addressed therein; determines the costs necessary to meet demands created by new development; 

and determines impact fees as set forth in this Ordinance that are at a level no greater than 

necessary to defray the cost of planned capital improvements to increase the service capacity of 

the City’s existing police facilities. The City hereby establishes as the City standards the 

assumptions and level of service standards referenced in the impact fee study as part of the City’s 

current plans for future expansions to the city police facilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, based on reasonable methodologies and analyses for determining the impacts of 

new development on the City’s police department, including review and reliance on the City of 

Middleton Comprehensive Plan, the impact fee study quantifies the impacts of new development 

on public facilities, and establishes impact fees on new development no greater than necessary to 

defray the cost of capital improvements that will increase the service capacity of public facilities 

to serve new development; and 

 

WHEREAS, in preparing the impact fee study, the City reviewed and has relied upon the 

Capital Improvements Plan prepared by Galena, in coordination with City’s engineers, planners, 

and financial officers, and adopted by the City, and has reviewed and analyzed what elements of 

new development are or would generate demand for additional city police facilities addressed 

therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, all of capital improvements planned for and included in the impact fee study, which 

are to be funded by city police impact fees are directly related to services that the City is 

authorized to provide, and are services required by the general policies of the City pursuant to 

resolution, code or ordinance; and 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 2 of 20 

 

WHEREAS, an equitable program for planning and financing capital improvements to increase 

the service capacity of public facilities needed to serve new development is necessary in order to 

promote and accommodate orderly growth and development and to protect the public health, 

safety and general welfare of the citizens of the City. Such protection requires that the City’s 

police facilities be expanded to accommodate new development within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the city police impact fees to be imposed on new development will be and are 

hereby legislatively adopted, will be generally applicable to all new residential and non-

residential construction and are intended to defray the projected impacts on such public facilities 

caused by new development as required by law; and 

 

WHEREAS, the impact fee study quantifies the reasonable impacts of new development on 

existing city police facilities, and the reasonable costs of capital improvements necessary to 

increase the service capacity of the City’s existing police facilities to accommodate the 

additional demands and impacts of new development; and 

 

WHEREAS, based upon the impact fee study, the testimony at public hearing, a review of all of 

the facts and circumstances, and the recommendation of the Impact Fee Advisory Committee, in 

the reasonable judgment of the City Council, the city police impact fees hereby established are at 

levels no greater than necessary to defray the cost of capital improvements directly related to the 

categories of residential and non-residential land development listed herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, in adopting the city police impact fees, the City Council intends and has determined 

that such impact fees are designed to and do address capital improvements needs that are brought 

about by new development, which needs are separate and distinct from the impacts and needs 

addressed by other requirements of the City’s codes and ordinances, and in no circumstance do 

the impact fees set forth herein address the same subjects as other requirements of the City's 

codes and ordinances for site specific dedications or improvements; and 

 

WHEREAS, the impact fees adopted hereby shall be collected and accounted for in accordance 

with Section 67-8201, et seq., Idaho Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the procedural requirements of Title 67, Chapter 82, Idaho 

Code, the impact fee study and Capital Improvements Plan have been presented to and reviewed 

by the City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, after due and timely notice, the City Council held a public hearing to discuss, 

review and hear public comments on the proposed impact fees set forth herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, the impact fees adopted hereby are fair and rational, charge new development 

according to new development’s impact on the City’s police and benefit those who pay impact 

fees in a tangible way. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIDDLETON, COUNTY OF CANYON, STATE OF IDAHO: 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 3 of 20 

 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and incorporated herein by this reference as 

findings of the City Council. 

 

Section 2.  Findings 

 

The City Council of the City of Middleton, Idaho finds that: 

 

(a)  Based on the City of Middleton Comprehensive Plan adopted by the City pursuant to 

Title 67, Chapter 65, Idaho Code, including but not limited to the capital improvements element 

of the Comprehensive Plan, and the general governmental goal of protecting the health, safety, 

and general welfare of the citizens of the City, and its area of city impact, it is necessary that the 

City’s public police facilities accommodate new growth and development within the City. 

 

(b)  New residential and non-residential growth and development imposes and will impose 

increasing and excessive demands upon the public facilities. 

 

(c)  The revenues generated from new residential and non-residential growth and 

development often do not generate sufficient funds to provide the necessary improvements to 

these public facilities to accommodate new growth and development. 

 

(d)  New growth and development are expected to continue, and will place ever-increasing 

demands on the City to provide and expand the public facilities to serve new growth and 

development. 

 

(e)  The City has planned for the improvement of the public facilities in the capital 

improvements plan. 

 

(f)  The creation of an equitable impact fee system would enable the City to impose a 

proportionate share of the costs of needed improvements to the public facilities to accommodate 

new growth and development, and would assist the City in implementing the capital 

improvements element of the comprehensive plan. 

 

(g)  In order to implement an equitable impact fee system for the Public Facilities, the City 

retained Galena & Associates to prepare an impact fee study for these types of facilities. The 

resulting document (the "impact fee study") is on file in the office of the city clerk of the City of 

Middleton. 

 

(h)  The impact fee study is consistent with the City of Middleton Comprehensive Plan and 

the levels of service set forth in the impact fee study are hereby adopted.  

 

(i)  The impact fee study sets forth reasonable methodologies and analyses for determining 

the impacts of residential and non-residential new growth and development on the public 

facilities and determines the cost of acquiring or constructing the improvements necessary to 

meet the demands for such public facilities created by new growth and development. 

 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 4 of 20 

(j)  The impact fee study uses a calculation methodology that is a net of credits for the 

present value of revenues that will be generated by new growth and development based on 

historical funding patterns and that are reasonably anticipated to be available to pay for system 

improvements including user fees, debt service payments, taxes, assessments, intergovernmental 

transfers, and all other available sources of funding such system, and included consideration of 

the following factors: 

 

1) The cost of existing system improvements within the service area or areas; 

2) The means by which existing system improvements have been financed; 

3) The extent to which the new development will contribute to the cost of system 

improvements through taxation, assessment, or developer or landowner contributions, or 

has previously contributed to the cost of system improvements through developer or 

landowner contributions.  

4) The extent to which the new development is required to contribute to the cost of 

existing system improvements in the future. 

5) The extent to which the new development should be credited for providing system 

improvements, without charge to other properties within the service area or areas; 

6) Extraordinary costs, if any, incurred in serving the new development; 

7) The time and price differential inherent in a fair comparison of fees paid at different 

times; and 

8) The availability of other sources of funding system improvements including, but not 

limited to, user charges, general tax levies, intergovernmental transfers, and special 

taxation. 

 

(k)  The impact fees are based on the Impact fee Study, and do not exceed the costs of system 

improvements for the public facilities to serve new development that will pay the impact fees. 

 

(1)  The city police facilities included in the calculation of impact fees in the impact fee study 

will benefit all new growth and development throughout the City, and it is therefore appropriate 

to treat all areas of the City as a single service area for purposes of calculating, collecting and 

spending the impact fees collected. 

 

(m)  There is both a rational nexus and a rough proportionality between the development 

impacts created by each type of development covered by this ordinance and the impact fees that 

such development will be required to pay.  

 

(n)  This ordinance creates a system by which impact fees paid by new growth and 

development will be used to finance, defray or to provide capital improvements for the public 

facilities in ways that benefit the development for which impact fees were paid. 

 

(o)  This ordinance creates a system under which impact fees shall not be used to correct 

existing deficiencies in public facilities, or to replace or rehabilitate existing public facilities, or 

to pay for routine operation or maintenance of those public facilities. 

 

(p)  This ordinance creates a system under which there shall be no double payment of impact 

fees, in accordance with Idaho Code Section 67-8204(l9). 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 5 of 20 

 

(q)  This ordinance  is consistent with all applicable provisions of Title 67, Chapter 82, Idaho 

Code, concerning impact fee ordinances. 

 

(r)  This ordinance shall not be deemed invalid because payment of an impact fee may result 

in an incidental benefit to others within the service area other than the fee payer. 

 

Section 3. Authority, Applicability, and Effective Date 

 

(a)  This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the City's general police powers pursuant to the 

authority granted to the City by Title 50, Idaho Code, and pursuant to the authority granted to the 

City by Section 67-8201, et seq., Idaho Code. 

 

(b)  The provisions of this ordinance shall apply to all territory within the limits of the City. 

 

Section 4. Intent 

 

(a)  The intent of this ordinance is to promote the health, safety and general welfare of the 

residents of the City and its area of city impact. 

 

(b)  The intent of this ordinance is to be consistent with those principles for allocating a fair 

and proportionate share of the cost of capital improvements to public facilities to serve new 

development in compliance with the provisions set forth in Section 67-8201, et seq., Idaho Code. 

The provisions of this ordinance shall be interpreted, construed and enforced in accordance with 

the provisions set forth in Section 67-8201, et seq., Idaho Code. 

 

(c)  The intent of this ordinance is that impact fees should be charged, collected, and 

expended for city police capital improvements to increase the service capacity of those public 

facilities, which capital improvements are included in approved capital improvements plans that 

list the capital improvements that may be funded with impact fees. 

 

(d)  The intent of this ordinance is to ensure that: Public facilities are available to serve new 

development; new development bears a proportionate share of the cost of city police capital 

improvements to such public facilities; to ensure that such proportionate share does not exceed 

the cost of the capital improvements to such public facilities required to serve new development; 

and to ensure that the funds collected from new development are used for capital improvements 

for public facilities that benefit new development. 

 

(c)  It is not the intent of this ordinance to collect any monies from new development in 

excess of the actual amount necessary to offset new demands for capital improvements to public 

facilities created by such new development. 

 

(f)  It is not the intent of this ordinance that the impact fees be used to remedy any deficiency 

in city police facilities existing on the effective date of this Ordinance, or ever be used to replace, 

rehabilitate, maintain and/or operate any public facilities. 

 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 6 of 20 

(g)  It is not the intent of this ordinance that any monies collected from an impact fee 

deposited in an impact fee fund ever be commingled with monies from a different fund, or ever 

be used for capital improvements that are different from those for which the impact fee was paid. 

 

(h) It is not the intent of this ordinance that impact fees be used for: 

 

(1) Construction, acquisition or expansion of public facilities other than capital 

improvements identified in the Capital Improvements Plan. 

 

(2) Repair, operation or maintenance of existing or new capital improvements. 

 

(3) Upgrading, updating, expanding or replacing existing capital improvements to serve 

existing development in order to meet stricter safety, efficiency, environmental or 

regulatory standards. 

 

(4) Upgrading, updating, expanding or replacing existing capital improvements to serve 

existing development to provide better service to existing development. 

 

(5) Administrative and operating costs of the City unless such costs are attributable to 

development of the Capital Improvements Plan used to determine impact fees by a 

surcharge imposed by ordinance on the collection of an impact fee, which surcharge shall 

not exceed a development’s proportionate share of the cost of preparing the Capital 

Improvements Plan. 

 

(6) Principal payments and interest or other finance charges on bonds or other 

indebtedness except financial obligations issued by or on behalf of the City to finance 

capital improvements identified in the Capital Improvements Plan. 

 

Section 5.  Imposition and Computation of Impact Fees 

 

(a)  The development impact fee reflects the need for capital improvements to public facilities 

created by new development. Any application for a building permit enabling the construction 

and, in the case of construction that does not require a building permit, any building that takes 

place on or after the effective date of this Ordinance shall be subject to the imposition of impact 

fees in the manner and amount set forth in this ordinance. The methodology adopted for the 

purpose of determining city police impact fees shall be based upon the assumptions set forth in 

the impact fee study and pursuant to the following: 

 

(1) The development impact fee shall not exceed the proportionate share of the costs 

incurred or the costs that will be incurred by the City in the provision of system 

improvements to serve new development. 

 

(2) The proportionate share is the cost attributable to the new development after 

consideration by the City of the following factors: 

 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 7 of 20 

a.  any appropriate credit, offset or contribution of money, dedication of land, or 

construction of system improvements; 

 

b.  payments reasonably anticipated to be made by or as a result of a new 

development in the form of user fees and debt service payments; 

 

c.  that portion of general tax and other revenues allocated by the jurisdiction to 

system improvements; and 

 

d.  all other available sources of funding such system improvements. 

 

(3) In determining the proportionate share of the cost of system improvements to be paid 

by the developer, the following additional factors shall be considered: 

 

a.  The cost of existing system improvements within the service area or areas; 

 

b.  The means by which existing system improvements have been financed; 

 

c.  The extent to which the new development will contribute to the cost of system 

improvements through taxation, assessment, or developer or landowner 

contributions, or has previously contributed to the cost of system improvements 

through developer or landowner contributions. 

 

d.  The extent to which the new development is required to contribute to the cost 

of existing system improvements in the future. 

 

e.  The extent to which the new development should be credited for providing 

system improvements, without charge to other properties within the service area 

or areas; 

 

f.  Extraordinary costs, if any, incurred in serving the new development; 

 

g. The time and price differential inherent in a fair comparison of fees paid at 

different times; and 

 

h. The availability of other sources of funding system improvements including, 

but not limited to, user charges, general tax levies, intergovernmental transfers, 

and special taxation. The   governmental entity shall develop a plan for alternative 

sources of revenue. 

 

(b)  Impact fees shall be required as a condition of approval of all residential and non-

residential development in the service area for which a building permit is required and shall be 

payable prior to the issuance of any building permit (or installation permit in the case of a 

manufactured home) for a dwelling unit. Except as otherwise provided herein, after the effective 

date of this Ordinance, no building permit shall be issued until the impact fees described in this 

ordinance have been paid, unless the development for which the permit is sought is exempted or 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 8 of 20 

approved credits are used to cover the impact fee. The City shall have the authority to withhold a 

building permit, stop construction, withhold utility services or impose liens as the case may be, 

until the appropriate impact fee has been collected. 

 

(c)  After payment of the development impact fees or execution of an agreement for payment 

of development impact fees, additional development impact fees or increases in fees may not be 

assessed unless the number of service units increases or the scope or schedule of the 

development changes. In the event of an increase in the number of service units or schedule of 

the development changes, the additional development impact fees to be imposed are limited to 

the amount attributable to the additional service units or change in scope of the development. 

 

(d)  A fee payer required to pay an impact fee may choose to have the amount of such impact 

fee determined pursuant to either the Fee Schedule (whereupon such payment shall be 

recognized as full and complete payment of the development’s proportionate share of system 

improvement costs, except as provided in Idaho Code Section 67-8214(3)) or subsections (e) 

through (g) below). If the fee payer chooses to have the amount of such impact fee determined 

pursuant to subsections (e) through (g) below, such impact fee shall be subject to the adjustment 

described in Section 04-05-09, if applicable. If the project is a mix of those uses listed on the Fee 

Schedule, then the impact fees shall be determined by adding up the impact fees that would be 

payable for each use as if it were a freestanding use pursuant to the Fee Schedule. 

 

(e)  Individual assessment of impact fees is permitted in situations where the fee payer can 

demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence that the established impact fee is inappropriate for 

the project. Written application for individual assessment shall be made to the City at any time 

prior to receiving building permit(s). Late applications for individual assessment of impact fees 

may be considered for a period of sixty (60) days after the receipt of a building permit only if the 

fee payer makes a showing that the facts supporting such application were not known or 

discoverable prior to receipt of a building permit and that undue hardship would result if said 

application is not considered. Such independent impact fee calculation study for the fee payer's 

development shall be prepared at the fee payer's cost by a qualified professional and contain 

studies, data and other relevant information and be submitted to the City for review. Any such 

study shall be based on the same methodology and the same level of service standards, 

improvements and costs used in the impact fee study, and must document the methodologies and 

assumptions used. The City may hire a professional consultant to review any independent impact 

fee calculation study on behalf of the City, and may charge the reasonable costs of such review 

to the fee payer. 

 

(f)  Any independent impact fee calculation study submitted by a fee payer may be accepted, 

rejected or accepted with modifications by the City as the basis for calculating impact fees. The 

City shall not be required to accept any study or documentation the City reasonably deems to be 

inaccurate or unreliable, and shall have the authority to request that the fee payer submit 

additional or different documentation for consideration in connection with review of any 

independent impact fee calculation. If such additional or different documentation is accepted or 

accepted with modifications as a more accurate measure of the Impact fees due in connection 

with fee payer's proposed development than the applicable Impact fees set forth in subsection the 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 9 of 20 

Fee Schedule, then the impact fee due under this ordinance shall be calculated according to such 

documentation. 

 

(g)  The City shall render a written decision establishing the Impact fees in connection with 

the individual assessment within thirty (30) days of the date a complete application is submitted. 

The decision shall include an explanation of the calculation of the Impact fees, shall specify the 

system improvement(s) for which the impact fees are intended to be used, and shall include an 

explanation of the factors considered pursuant to Idaho Code §67-8207. 

 

(h)  Certification of the impact fee for a project may be applied for in the following manner: 

 

(1) Written application may be made to the City not later than sixty (60) days after 

development approval by the City Council. Late applications for certification of the 

impact fee will not be considered unless the fee payer makes a showing that the facts 

supporting such application were not known or discoverable until after the time had run 

and that undue hardship would result if said application is not considered. 

 

(2) The City shall provide the fee payer with a written Impact fee certification for the 

Project within thirty (30) days of the date a complete application is submitted. The 

certification provided by the City shall establish the impact fee for the project in question 

so long as there is no material change to the project as identified in the certification 

application or the impact fee schedule. The certification shall include an explanation of 

the calculation of the impact fees, shall specify the system improvement(s) for which the 

impact fees are intended to be used, and shall include an explanation of the factors 

considered, which factors are identified in subsection (g) above. 

 

(i)  Appeals of the City’s determination of an individual assessment or certification shall be 

made to the City as provided further in this ordinance. 

 

(j)  There may be circumstances where the anticipated fiscal impacts of a proposed 

development are of such magnitude that the City may be unable to accommodate the 

development without excessive or unscheduled public expenditures that exceed the amount of 

the anticipated Impact fees from such development. If the City determines that a proposed 

development would create such an extraordinary impact on the City's police, the City may refuse 

to approve the proposed development and/or may recommend to the other affected government 

agencies that the project not be approved. In the alternative, the City may calculate a pro rata 

share per dwelling unit, or square feet of nonresidential buildings, of the extraordinary impact 

and charge a reasonable extraordinary impact fee that is greater than would ordinarily be charged 

pursuant to the fee schedule. 

 

(k)  If the City discovers an error in its impact fee formula that results in assessment or 

payment of more than a proportionate share, City shall, at the time of assessment on a case by 

case basis, adjust the impact fee to collect no more than a proportionate share or discontinue the 

collection of any impact fees until the error is corrected by ordinance. 

 

Section 6. Payment of Impact Fees 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 10 of 20 

 

(a) After the effective date of this ordinance all fee payers shall pay the impact fees as 

provided by this ordinance to the City following application for a building permit and prior to the 

issuance of any building permit. 

 

(b)  All impact fees paid by a fee payer pursuant to this ordinance shall be promptly deposited 

in the impact fee fund. 

 

(c) Taxing districts shall be subject to payment of Impact Fees on all developments in the 

City pursuant to the terms of this ordinance unless the City and the taxing district enter into a 

written agreement that provides otherwise. 

 

Section 7. Impact Fee Funds; Refunds of Impact Fees Paid 

 

(a)  There is hereby established a City Police Impact Fee Fund into which shall be deposited 

all police impact fees for the purpose of ensuring City police impact fees collected pursuant 

hereto are designated for the accommodation of City police capital improvements reasonably 

necessary to serve new development that paid the impact fee. 

 

(b)  Each fund shall be an interest-bearing account which shall be accounted for separately 

from other impact fee funds and from other City funds. Any interest or other income earned on 

monies deposited in a fund shall be credited to such fund. Expenditures of impact fees shall be 

made only for the category of system improvements for which the impact fees were collected 

and as identified in the Capital Improvements Plan. 

 

(c)  Except as otherwise provided herein, monies from the fund, including any accrued 

interest, shall be limited to the financing of acquisition, expansion, and/or improvement of 

capital improvements, or for principal and interest payments on bonds or other borrowed 

revenues used to acquire, expand or improve such capital improvements, necessary to serve new 

development. Impact fees in each fund shall be spent within eight (8) years from the date such 

impact fees were collected on a first-in/first-out (FIFO) basis. The City may hold the impact fees 

longer than the prescribed time period if the City identifies, in writing: (1) a reasonable cause 

why the impact fees should be held longer; and (2) an anticipated date by which the impact fees 

will be expended but in no event longer than eleven (11) years from the date the impact fees 

were collected. 

 

(d)  The City shall prepare annual reports to be provided to the Advisory Committee and the 

City Council, which reports shall: (1) describe the amount of all impact fees collected, 

appropriated or spent for system improvements during the preceding year, as applicable, by 

category of public facility and service area; and (2) describe the percentage of tax and revenues 

other than impact fees collected, appropriated or spent for system improvements during the 

preceding year, as applicable, by category of public facility and service area. 

 

(e)  Funds shall be deemed expended when payment of such funds has been approved by the 

City. The fee payer or successor in interest shall be entitled to a refund of the impact fee if: 

(1) service is available but never provided;  



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 11 of 20 

(2) a building permit or permit for installation of a manufactured home is revoked or 

abandoned;  

(3) the City, after collecting the impact fee when service is not available, has failed to 

appropriate and expend the collected impact fees; or  

(4) the fee payer pays an Impact fee under protest and a subsequent review of the impact 

fee paid or the completion of an individual assessment determines that the impact fee 

paid exceeded the proportionate share to which the City was entitled to receive. 

 

(f)  When the right to a refund exists, within ninety (90) days after the City determines that a 

refund is due, the City shall provide written notice of entitlement to a refund, to the owner of 

record and the fee payer who paid the impact fees at the address shown on the application for 

development approval, or to a successor in interest who has notified the City of a transfer of the 

right or entitlement to a refund and who has provided to the City a mailing address. When the 

right to a refund exists, the City shall also publish the notice of entitlement to a refund within 

thirty (30) days after the expiration of the eight (8) year period after the date that the impact fees 

were collected. Such published notice shall contain the heading "Notice of Entitlement to Impact 

Fee Refund." 

 

(g)  A refund shall include interest at one-half (1/2) the legal rate provided for in Section 28-

22-104, Idaho Code, from the date on which the impact fee was originally paid. 

 

(h)  In order to be eligible for a refund, a fee payer, successor in interest or owner of record 

shall file a written application for a refund with the City within six (6) months of the time such 

refund becomes payable under subsection (c) above, or within six (6) months of publication of 

the notice of entitlement to a refund, whichever is later. If a successor in interest claims a refund 

of impact fees, the City may require written documentation that such rights have been transferred 

to the claimant prior to issuing the requested refund. Refunds shall be paid within sixty (60) days 

after the date on which the City determines that a sufficient proof of claim for a refund has been 

made. 

 

(i)  Any person entitled to a refund shall have standing to sue for a refund under the 

provisions of this ordinance if there has not been a timely payment of a refund as provided 

herein. 

 

Section 8. Exemptions from Impact Fees 

 

(a)  The following types of land development shall be exempted from payment of the impact 

fees imposed by this ordinance: 

 

(1) Rebuilding the same amount of square feet of a dwelling unit or nonresidential 

structure that was destroyed by fire or other catastrophe, provided that the structure is 

rebuilt and ready for occupancy within two (2) years of its destruction. 

 

(2) Construction of an unoccupied, detached accessory structure, or addition of uses 

related to a dwelling unit unless it can be clearly demonstrated that the use creates a 

significant impact on the capacity of system improvements. 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 12 of 20 

 

(3) Remodeling or repairing a dwelling unit or a nonresidential structure in a manner that 

does not increase the number of service units. 

 

(4) Replacing a dwelling unit with another dwelling unit on the same lot, provided that 

the number of service units does not increase. 

 

(5) Placing a temporary construction trailer or office on a lot. 

 

(6) Constructing an addition on a residential structure which does not increase the 

number of service units. 

 

(7) Adding uses that are typically accessory to residential uses, such as tennis courts or 

clubhouse, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that the use creates a significant impact 

on the capacity of system improvements. 

 

(b)  An impact fee will be assessed for installation of a modular building, manufactured home 

or recreational vehicle unless the fee payer can demonstrate by documentation such as utility 

bills and tax records, either: (1) that a modular building, manufactured home or recreational 

vehicle was legally in place on the lot or space prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; or (2) 

that an impact fee has been paid previously for the installation of a modular building, 

manufactured home or recreational vehicle on that same lot or space. Lawful storage of a 

recreational vehicle shall not be deemed installation for purposes of this ordinance. 

 

Section 9. Credits; Reimbursements 

 

(a)  No fee payer shall be required to construct, fund or contribute any capital improvement to 

meet the same need for city police for which an impact fee is imposed. All system improvements 

constructed, funded or contributed over and above the proportionate share of system 

improvement costs, including such system improvements paid for pursuant to a local 

improvement district, shall result in either a credit on future impact fees or reimbursement (at the 

fee payer’s option) for such excess construction, funding or contribution to be paid from impact 

fees paid by future development that benefits from such system improvements constructed, 

funded or contributed by the fee payer. However, no credit or reimbursement shall be provided 

for: (1) project improvements; (2) any construction, funding or contribution not agreed to in 

writing by the City prior to commencement of such construction, funding or contribution; (3) any 

construction, funding or contribution of a type of capital improvements not included in the 

calculation of the applicable impact fee; and (4) any improvement required by an agency other 

than the City for that agency’s development approval. 

 

(b)  In the calculation of an individual assessment of impact fees for a project, credit shall be 

given for the present value of all tax and user fee revenue generated by the fee payer within the 

service area and used by the City for system improvements of the category for which the impact 

fee is being collected. If the amount of such credit exceeds the impact fee for a project, the fee 

payer shall receive a credit on future impact fees. The credit may be applied by the fee payer as 

an offset against future impact fees only in the service area where the credit was generated. 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 13 of 20 

 

(c)  In the calculation of impact fees for a project, credit or reimbursement (at the fee payer’s 

option) shall be given for the present value of any construction of system improvements or 

contribution of land or money required by the City from the developer for system improvements 

of the category for which the impact fee is being collected, including system improvements paid 

for through local improvement district assessments. Credit or reimbursement shall not be given 

for project improvement. 

 

(d)  If credit or reimbursement is due to the fee payer, the City and fee payer shall enter into a 

written agreement, negotiated in good faith, prior to the construction, funding or contribution. 

The written agreement shall include, without limitation: a description of the construction, 

funding or contribution of system improvements including, in the case of real property, a legal 

description of the real property; description as to how the system improvements are to be valued; 

the amount of the credit or the amount, time and form of reimbursement; instructions as to how 

the capital improvements should be provided to the City to ensure full transfer of ownership; and 

the circumstances under which the credit or reimbursement is deemed effective. To assist in such 

reimbursement, the City shall continue to collect impact fees from other Developers whose 

proposed developments will benefit from such construction, funding or contribution, and will 

promptly transfer such funds to the fee payer. If a successor in interest claims a reimbursement 

or credit, the City may require written documentation that such rights have been conveyed to the 

claimant prior to issuing the requested reimbursement or credit. 

 

(e)  Approved credits may be used to reduce the amount of impact fees in connection with 

any new development until the amount of the credit is exhausted. Each time a request to use 

approved credits is presented to the City, the City shall reduce the amount of the applicable 

impact fee otherwise due from the fee payer and shall note in the City records the amount of 

credit remaining, if any. Upon request of the fee payer, the City shall issue a letter stating the 

amount of credit available. If the credit has not been exhausted within eight (8) years of the date 

of issuance of the first building permit for which an impact fee was due and payable, or within 

such other time period as may be designated in writing by the City, such credit shall lapse, unless 

a refund of the remaining credit is applied for. 

 

(f)  Approved credits or reimbursement shall only be used to reduce the amount of the impact 

fee of the category for which the impact fee is otherwise due, and shall not be paid to the fee 

payer in cash or in credits against any other monies due from the fee payer to the City. 

 

(g)  Credit for land dedications shall, at the fee payer’s option, be valued at: (1) one hundred 

(100) percent of the most recent assessed value for such land as shown in the records of the 

Canyon County Assessor; or (2) that fair market value established by a private appraiser 

reasonably acceptable to the City in an appraisal paid for by the fee payer. Credit for contribution 

or construction of system improvements shall be valued by the City based on complete 

engineering drawings, specifications, and construction cost estimates submitted by the fee payer 

to the City, which estimates shall be revised as actual costs become available. The City shall 

determine the amount of credit due based on the information submitted, or, if the City determines 

that such information is inaccurate or unreliable, then on alternative engineering or construction 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 14 of 20 

costs reasonably acceptable to the City as a more accurate measure of the value of the offered 

system improvements to the City. 

 

(h)  Approved credits for land dedications shall become effective when the land has been 

conveyed to the City in a form reasonably acceptable to the City at no cost to the City, and has 

been accepted by the City. Approved credits for contribution or construction of System 

Improvements shall generally become effective when: (1) all required construction has been 

completed and has been accepted by the City; and (2) all design, construction, inspection, testing, 

bonding, and acceptance procedures have been completed in compliance with all applicable 

requirements of the City. Approved credits for the construction of system improvements may 

become effective at an earlier date if the fee payer posts security in the form of a performance 

bond, irrevocable letter of credit or escrow agreement in the amount and under terms reasonably 

acceptable to the City. 

 

(i)  Credit may only be transferred by a fee payer that has received credit to such fee payer’s 

successor in interest. The credit may be used only to offset impact fees for the same category for 

which the credit was issued. Credits shall be transferred by any written instrument clearly 

identifying which credits are being transferred, the dollar amount of the credit being transferred, 

and the system improvements for which the credit was issued. The instrument of transfer shall be 

signed by both the transferor and transferee, and a copy of the document shall be delivered to the 

City for documentation of the transfer before the transfer shall be deemed effective. 

 

(j)  Suitability of Land Offered for Dedication: In the event that a developer intends to 

contribute or dedicate an interest in land in lieu of paying impact fees or a portion thereof, the 

following procedures and criteria shall be applied:  

 

(1) The City with the advice of the appropriate department head and the 

City Attorney will determine whether the land proposed for dedication is acceptable 

based upon the following considerations: 

 

a. Size: The size of the parcel is expressed as a net amount and is exclusive of 

street right-of-way, existing and proposed easements, borrow pits, lakes, and other 

man-made or natural conditions which restrict or impede the intended use of such 

areas. 

 

b. Unity: The land to be dedicated shall form a single parcel of land except where 

aforesaid review determines that two or more parcels would be in the best public 

interest. 

 

c. Shape: The configuration of the parcel of land is such as to be usable for public 

facilities purposes as determined by the City. 

 

d. Location: The land to be dedicated is so located as to serve the needs of the 

development, by being within the service area public facilities. 

 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 15 of 20 

e. Access: Appropriate access to the land to be dedicated is provided by improved 

public street frontage. 

 

f. Utility: Dedicated land should be usable for public facilities purposes and meet 

the following criteria prior to its final acceptance by the City: 

 

1. The property is platted and ready to be developed 

 

2. All utilities are in place and are at the perimeter of the site and include 

roads, walks, curbs, water lines, sewer lines, electric service lines, and 

telephone service lines. 

 

3. All utilities are of sufficient quality and quantity to adequately service 

the site. 

 

4. The property is filled and compacted to comply with all appropriate 

subdivision codes, building and zoning codes, and flood insurance laws 

and regulations. The fill and compaction are of sufficient quality to accept 

the contemplated improvements. 

 

g. Plans: City, regional, and state plans shall be taken into consideration when 

evaluating land proposals for dedication. 

 

(2)  Appeals of the City’s determination of land suitability shall be made to the City 

Council by the filing of an appeal with the city clerk no later than ten (10) days following 

the date of the decision of the City. 

 

Section 10. Appeals 

 

The decisions of the City may be appealed as provided below: 

 

(a)  Any fee payer who is or may be obligated to pay an impact fee may appeal a decision 

made by the City in applying this Ordinance to the City Council’s designee. Such decisions that 

may be appealed include: 

 

(1)  The applicability of an impact fee to the development. 

 

(2)  The amount of an impact fee to be paid for the development. 

 

(3)  The availability, amount or application of any credit. 

 

(4)  The amount of any refund, reimbursement or credit. 

 

(5)  Any discretionary action or inaction by or on behalf of the City. 

 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 16 of 20 

A fee payer may pay an Impact fee under protest in order to obtain a development approval or 

building permit(s) and, by paying such impact fee, shall not be estopped from exercising the 

right of appeal provided herein, nor shall the fee payer be estopped from receiving a refund of 

any amount deemed to have been illegally collected. Upon final disposition of an appeal, the 

impact fee shall be adjusted in accordance with the decision rendered and, if necessary, a refund 

paid. 

 

(b)  In order to pursue an appeal, the fee payer shall file a written notice of appeal with the 

City Council’s designee within fifteen (15) days after the date of the decision being appealed, or 

the date on which the fee payer submitted a payment of impact fees under protest, whichever is 

later. Such written application shall include a statement describing why the appellant believes 

that the decision was in error; together with copies of any documents that the appellant believes 

supports the claim. 

 

(c)  The City Council’s designee shall notify the fee payer of the hearing date on the appeal, 

which notice shall be given no less than fifteen (15) days prior to the date of the hearing, and 

shall hear the appeal within thirty (30) days after receipt of a written notice of appeal. The 

appellant shall have a right to be present and to present evidence in support of the appeal. The 

City who made the decision under appeal shall likewise have the right to be present and to 

present evidence in support of the decision. The burden of proof in any such hearing shall be on 

the fee payer to demonstrate that the amount of the impact fee, credit, reimbursement or refund 

was not properly calculated by the City. 

 

(d)  The criteria to be used by the City Council’s designee shall be whether: (1) the decision 

or interpretation made by the City; or (2) the alternative decision or interpretation offered by the 

appellant, more accurately reflects the intent of this ordinance that new development in the City 

pay its proportionate share of the costs of system improvements for public facilities necessary to 

serve new growth and development. The City Council’s designee may affirm, reject or revise the 

decision of the City, providing written findings of fact and conclusions, within fifteen (15) days 

after hearing the appeal. The City Council’s designee shall modify the amount of the impact fee, 

credit, refund or reimbursement only if there is substantial evidence in the record that the City 

erred, based upon the methodologies contained in the impact fee study, this ordinance and/or the 

Capital Improvements Plan. The decision of the City Council’s designee shall be final. 

 

(e)  Upon voluntary agreement by the fee payer and the City, the fee payer and the City may 

enter into mediation with a qualified independent party to address a disagreement related to the 

impact fee for proposed development. Costs for the independent mediation service shall be 

shared equally by the fee payer and the City. Mediation may take place at any time during an 

appeals process and participation in mediation does not preclude the fee payer from pursuing 

other remedies. 

 

Section 11. Impact fee Advisory Committee 

 

(a)  The City has established an advisory committee. The advisory committee shall continue 

to be composed of not fewer than five (5) members appointed by the City Council. Two (2) or 

more members of the advisory committee shall be active in the business of development, 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 17 of 20 

building or real estate.  The advisory committee shall serve in an advisory capacity to the City 

Council and is established to: 

 

(1) Assist the City in adopting land use assumptions; 

 

(2) Review the Capital Improvements Plan, and proposed amendments, and file written 

comments; 

 

(3) Monitor and evaluate implementation of the Capital Improvements Plan; 

 

(4) File periodic reports, at least annually, with respect to the Capital Improvements Plan 

and report to the City any perceived inequities in implementing the Capital Improvements 

Plan or imposing the impact fees; and 

 

(5) Advise the City of the need to update or revise land use assumptions, the Capital 

Improvements Plan, and impact fees. 

 

(b)  The City shall make available to the advisory committee, upon request, all financial and 

accounting information, professional reports in relation to other development and 

implementation of land use assumptions, the Capital Improvements Plan and periodic updates of 

the Capital Improvements Plan. 

 

Section 12. Miscellaneous Provisions 

 

(a)  As used in this ordinance, masculine, feminine or neuter gender and the singular or plural 

number shall each be deemed to include the others wherever and whenever the context so 

dictates; the word shall, will or must is always mandatory; the word may is permissive; and the 

word should indicates that which is recommended, but not required. 

 

(b)  Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to create any additional right to develop real 

property or diminish the power of the City in regulating the orderly development of real 

property. 

 

(c)  Nothing in this ordinance shall limit or modify the rights of any Person to complete any 

development for which a lawful building permit was issued prior to the effective date of this 

Ordinance. 

 

(d)  Nothing in this ordinance shall prevent the City from requiring a Developer to construct 

reasonable Project Improvements in conjunction with a Project. 

 

(e)  Nothing in this ordinance shall limit the ability of the City to enter into intergovernmental 

agreements as provided in Section 67-8204A, Idaho Code. 

 

(f) Nothing in this ordinance shall obligate the City to approve any development request that 

may reasonably be expected to reduce levels of service below minimum acceptable levels 

established in the development impact fee study. 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 18 of 20 

 

(g)  Nothing in this ordinance shall obligate the City to approve development which results in 

extraordinary impact. 

 

(h)  Notwithstanding any agreement by the fee payer to pay the proportionate share of system 

improvement costs documented by the supplemental study, nothing in this ordinance shall 

obligate the City to approve development that results in an extraordinary impact. 

 

(i)  Nothing in this ordinance shall work to limit the use by the City of the power of eminent 

domain or supersede or conflict with requirements or procedures authorized in the Idaho Code 

for local improvement districts or general obligation bond issues. 

 

(j)  A development impact fee shall not exceed a proportionate share of the cost of system 

improvements determined in accordance with section 67-8207, Idaho Code. Development impact 

fees shall be based on actual system improvement costs or reasonable estimates of such costs. 

 

(k)  Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to prevent or prohibit private agreements 

between developers, the City, the Idaho Transportation Department, and/or other governmental 

entities in regard to the construction or installation of system improvements or providing for 

credits or reimbursements for system improvement costs incurred by a developer or fee payer, 

including inter-project transfers of credits, or providing for reimbursement for project 

improvements that are used or shared by more than one development project. If it can be shown 

that a proposed development has a direct impact on a public facility under the jurisdiction of the 

Idaho Transportation Department, then the agreement shall include a provision for the allocation 

of development impact fees collected from the developer or fee payer for the improvement of the 

public facility by the Idaho Transportation Department. 

 

(1)  Nothing in this ordinance shall restrict or diminish the power of the City: (1) to impose 

reasonable conditions on the annexation of any property to the City in accordance with Idaho 

Code, including conditions for recovery of project or system improvement costs required as a 

result of such voluntary annexation, or (2) to negotiate and execute development agreements that 

may impose additional conditions on development, including the recovery of project or system 

improvement costs, either in connection with a proposed annexation or in connection with any 

other development within the City. 

 

(m)  The impact fees described in this ordinance, and the administrative procedures of this 

ordinance shall be reviewed at least once every five (5) years to ensure that: (1) the demand and 

cost assumptions and other assumptions underlying such impact fees are still valid; (2) the 

resulting impact fees do not exceed the actual costs of providing city police facilities required to 

serve new development; (3) the monies collected in any impact fee fund have been and are 

expected to be spent for system improvements of the type for which such impact fees were paid; 

and (4) such system improvements will benefit those developments for which the impact fees 

were paid. 

 

(n)  Violation of this ordinance shall be subject to those remedies provided in the Middleton 

City Code. Knowingly furnishing false information to any official of the City charged with the 



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 19 of 20 

administration of this ordinance on any matter relating to the administration of this ordinance 

including, without limitation, the furnishing of false information regarding the expected size or 

use of a proposed development, shall be a violation of this ordinance. 

 

(o)  The captions used in this ordinance are for convenience only and shall not affect the 

interpretation of any portion of the text of this ordinance. 

 

Section 13.  If any paragraph, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, 

for any reason, held to be invalid, inconsistent with the provisions of the Idaho Impact Fee Act, 

Sections 67-8201, et seq., Idaho Code, unconstitutional and/or unenforceable, such provisions 

shall be deemed to be separate, distinct and independent and the remaining provisions of this 

ordinance shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section 14.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after thirty (30) days 

subsequent to this Ordinance’s passage, approval, and publication, according to law, whereupon 

all ordinances or parts of ordinances, codes or parts of codes, in conflict with the provisions of 

this Ordinance shall be repealed. 

 

Dated this _____ day of November, 2020. 
 
      CITY OF MIDDLETON 
      Canyon County, Idaho 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Steven J Rule, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Jennica Reynolds 
Deputy City Clerk 
 

    

    

 

  



 

Impact Fee Ordinance No. 643 – Page 20 of 20 

EXHIBIT A 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

Except for such Impact fee as may be calculated, paid and accepted pursuant to an independent 

Impact fee calculation study, the amount of each Impact fee shall be as follows: 

 

Police Impact fee Schedule: 

 

Residential    $304.00 per Dwelling Unit 

Non-Residential   $    0.15 per square foot 

 

This Fee Schedule shall be in effect beginning December 5, 2020. 

 

On January 1, 2022 and on January 1st of each year thereafter in which an Impact fee is in effect, 

the amount of the Impact fee may be automatically adjusted to account for inflation increases in 

the cost of providing City police facilities to serve new development utilizing an inflation factor 

for building material from a reputable source such as McGraw Hill’s Engineering News Record. 

Nothing herein shall prevent the City from electing to maintain a then-existing Impact fee or 

from electing to waive the inflation adjustment for any given fiscal year, or years. Any such 

action to determine an inflation factor shall be by City Council resolution. 

 




